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New Three-Year Strategy
The latter half of the last financial year was used to compile 

the new three-year strategy to ensure long-term 

sustainability and relevance. The challenge was to position 

and maintain the provinces and regions in such a way as to 

ensure that the 2010/11 objectives could be achieved 

despite the lagging effect of the worldwide recession and 

the fast changing social and technological environment.

Organisational Objectives
Emphasis was placed on the ‘right skills in the right jobs’ to 

ensure that we have an efficient and equitable workforce, 

to support the new strategy and operational structure.  The 

most significant aspect of the realignment within 

operations was the structuring of the seven CANSA 

provinces into three business units. The challenge was to 

achieve our business objectives for 2010/11 without 

reducing productivity while preparing for the 

implementation of the new strategy.  

A consultative process was followed in the last quarter and 

the new operational structure was well received by all staff 

and volunteers. 

Business Performance
Internal realignment did not minimise our business 

performance. Our results in Operations reflect as follows:

Provincial Advocacy Highlights 
?Engagement of staff and our advocacy volunteers with 

local municipalities, provincial government as well as 

other stakeholders regarding participation and 

involvement in our cancer control and ‘watchdog’ 

projects

?Workshops and meetings with educators on the 

implementation of SunSmart, Healthy Living and 

Tobacco Control policies and measures within schools

?A community-based research project was done by 

students of the University of Cape Town, in partnership 

with CANSA Western Cape. The outcomes of this 

research on perceptions and practices surrounding 

cancer related matters in the Cape Flats provided 

valuable information in support of our advocacy 

initiatives

?On-going consultation and meetings with hospital 

management and private oncologists were held to 

ensure accessible resources and treatment of cancer 

patients 

?Mobilisation of communities, including workers, worker 

unions and children to promote The Tobacco Control 

Regulations Act in the communities and  workplaces  

?We hosted 33 symposia and conferences to promote 

our unique service offering (including our Seal of 

Recognition programmes) as well as enhancing public 

awareness regarding cancer control

Service Delivery 
We served the same number of beneficiaries with 

prevention, early detection, care and support programmes 

as the previous year, despite a 30% vacancy. This was 

achieved through improved efficiency by staff and 

volunteers and a more effective application of our service 

model coupled with more efficient utilisation of 

technology.

Report
COO’s 

Provincial
Overview

“Although it surely has been a very
challenging year, we are looking forward
to a stronger, more effective and 
efficient organisation.”- Elize Joubert -
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Awareness and Education
The five national campaigns are environmental awareness, 

balanced lifestyle, youth, women’s and men’s health - all 

focussing on comprehensive prevention.

?

directly through health talks and exhibitions 
?70 000 information pamphlets and 15 000 posters 

were distributed in four languages to promote our 
five awareness campaigns

Early Detection and Screening
Screenings were conducted via our seven mobile health 

clinics mainly in remote areas throughout South Africa.

?10 400 Pap smears for cervical cancer 
?15 400 Breast examinations to detect breast lumps
?5 600 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer
?700 Skin examinations and 315 FotoFinder 

examinations to check for skin cancers
?On average 7% abnormalities were detected in the 

overall screening programme

Approximately 1.3 million people were reached 
?We experienced an 8.5% growth in 

home-based care patient beneficiaries across 
more than 500 communities in South Africa

?A monthly average of 6 390 patients, reflected a 
43% growth in beneficiaries at our Care Centres 
and oncology clinics

?A growth of 45% in the occupancy rate at our 
13 CANSA Interim Homes (now called 
CANSA Care Lodges)

Sustainability
It remains an ongoing challenge to generate our income 

targets. The provinces achieved 74% of their financial 

income targets for the year under review. The following 

factors played a major role in our sustainability drive:

?A downturn in the economy affected donor support 

?Fierce competition in the market for scarce skills 

causing long-term vacancies in CANSA

?High unemployment rates and difficult socio- 

economical circumstances placing our volunteer 

programme under pressure as volunteers struggled to 

maintain their services and time at no cost. Despite 

these realities CANSA still enjoys the support of many 

loyal volunteers committed to the cause

Provincial and Regional Income
More than 200 local projects were organised and staged by 

our volunteer liaison committees which contributed to the 

local sustainability of CANSA during 2010/11.  We salute all 

these cancer warriors who selflessly gave of themselves 

and their time to the CANSA cause.

Income was mainly derived from the following projects and 

events:
?Flowers for Hope •  Jail n Bail
?Tap-Tap (Toktokkie) •  Healthy Living
?Breast health walks •  Teledonations
?Debutante (Vonkel Vrou) • Ad hoc special events

Screeningby Numbers

Support byNumbers

CANSA Provincial & Regional Projects
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National Income Projects
There was an overall income increase of 23% for all 

national projects.

Cuppa For CANSA - showed an 11% growth from the 

previous year with more groups and individuals in regions 

participating in Cuppa events.

Shavathon - reflected a growth of 30%. This project was 

extended to a four-day period to allow for more 

participation by workplaces as well as by the public at 

Shopping Centres. The number of venues and income 

grew significantly in Gauteng and Western Cape.  

Shavathon, as a highly interactive project, is still to be 

maximised to its full potential.

Sanlam Cancer Challenge - although showing a decrease 

of 1.75% due to the current economical climate affecting 

golf membership at clubs, the Sanlam Cancer Challenge 

remains a very exciting and effective vehicle for our 

mission delivery, as the largest amateur golf tournament in 

the country.

Movember - with an astounding growth of 500%, CANSA 

is the beneficiary of this online fundraising project.

?

?57 Relay community events hosted country-wide  
?3 400 teams enrolled
?More than 3 700 Survivors celebrated with us 
?Almost 120  000 people had a life-changing experience

Growth of more than 39%

Volunteer Development and 

Management
The gateway to our service delivery and income generation 

success is the effective mobilisation and utilisation of 

volunteers. Key focus areas for volunteer mobilisation and 

management in the past year included recruitment, 

development and training as well as our loyalty and 

nurturing programmes.

A total of 454 orientation courses were conducted for new 

volunteers to familiarise them with CANSA and 1 336 in-

service training workshops were offered to volunteer 

groups throughout the year. 

Our staff members are encouraged to ensure that 

volunteers experience professional guidance and support 

at all times. 

We are extremely proud of our strong volunteer corps. 

Through their selfless gift of caring they continue to devote 

their time and talents to those in need as well as helping 

CANSA to fulfil its mission.

Thanks
I wish to thank all staff, donors and volunteers for all your 

hard work, contributions and valuable support during the 

last year that enabled us to deliver on our purpose and 

mission.

A total of 2 814 members of public are members of our 
various volunteer leadership committees - 49.8% are 
people of colour and 50.1% are white, reflecting a 
growth of 17% in black volunteer leadership during the 
last year.

The Road Ahead
Although it surely has been a very 

challenging year, we are looking forward to a 

stronger, more effective and efficient 

organisation. We will strive to achieve our 

targets and attain our goals so that we can 

continue to grow our proud legacy of the 

past 80 years in our fight against cancer.  

We remain committed to:

?Full embedment of the realignment of 

CANSA

?Expansion of our service delivery to meet 

the increasing needs of our clients

?Expanding our CANSA Care Centre 

offerings 

?Revising our volunteer model to address 

the challenges and impact of the changing 

economical and social realities

?Growing Relay For Life events as the 

signature income generation project 

?Ongoing skills development and talent 

management to maximise effective 

performance

Relay For LifeSnapshot
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Eastern Cape
by Palesa Mgoduka, Provincial Manager

Key Highlights
?A local company donated a new wheelchair and bed 

linen to the StreIitzia Interim Home as well as R10 000 in 

memory of an employee who passed away from cancer

?World Cancer Day in February 2011 was highlighted at an 

event in Mdantsane, where more than 200 000 people 

were reached with messages about cancer survivorship, 

prevention and the early detection of cancer

?Awareness of the dangers of smoking was created at a 

number of schools, government institutions and 

companies where CANSA introduced the eKick Butt 

smoking cessation programme. We are delighted to 

announce that a number of employees stopped 

smoking. A no-smoking seminar at the Randall School in 

East London targeted teachers and parents regarding 

the rights of children to a smoke-free environment and 

the dangers of second-hand smoke

?Our Men’s Health Road Show in November 2010 

featured a volunteer riding a horse with a call to action to 

the local community to join in and listen to CANSA’s 

Men’s Health message at the Community Hall

?A very successful Women’s Health symposium was held 

in the OR Tambo region with gynaecologists, oncology 

units and family planning departments attending from 

surrounding municipal areas

?An enormous flag made by the Central Business District - 

presumed to be the biggest pink breast health flag in 

Africa - was flown during October at the Donkin 

Memorial in Port Elizabeth

?Port Elizabeth’s local celebrities were invited to enjoy

a day playing cricket at ‘The Celeb Sixes’ championed 

by former Protea cricketer and cancer survivor, 

Dave Callaghan. Initiated and organised by local 

businessman, Laurence Finn, this successful awareness 

and income project will be extended in other CANSA 

regions nationally

?The Bikini Shoot (another Western Region initiative) set 

the record for the biggest bikini parade. Guiness World 

Records registered the attempt and issued an official 

Guiness World Record certificate

?The CANSA Big Walk, organised by the Board Walk 

Shopping Centre, grew from 500 entrants to over 6 000, 

making it the largest walk in Port Elizabeth. With the 

further support of Radio Algoa it generated over

R30 000

?East London’s community supported the Relay For Life 

Amatole region raising R660 000, with 178 survivors 

attending and a record number of 168 teams 

participating

?102 479 people were 
reached with 1 276 talks
on cancer awareness

?53 820 people were reached through 184 cancer 
awareness exhibitions, health days and health 
camps

?24 323 people were reached with 232 talks on 
screening and early detection

?16 355 people were reached through 102 
screening and early detection exhibitions

?70 945 cancer awareness leaflets were distributed

Provincial Office
041 373 5157

HealthAwarenessby Numbers
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Cancer Screening
We partnered with the Department of Health (DoH) and 

conducted screening using our mobile health unit:

?

cervical cancer plus 737 with DoH
?1 164 Breast examinations to detect breast lumps plus 

359 with DoH
?28 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer plus 3 with DoH
?12 Skin examinations to check for skin cancers
?On average 13% abnormalities were detected in the 

total screenings in this province

 

?Patient care services provided
to 677 cancer patients and  their 
families

?1 592 patients were cared for at home 
(home-based care)

?38 patients were accommodated at the Interim Home 
in Port Elizabeth (254 bed days)

?8 support groups established and maintained by 
cancer survivors assisted by volunteers 

?1 733 patients attended these support groups 
?Medical equipment and other assistive devices were 

made available to 73 patients
?519 patients were supported at oncology clinics 

whilst receiving cancer treatment

373 Pap smears for

Fund Development
The following events were successfully championed 
with the help of our dedicated volunteers:
?Cuppa For CANSA - R227 047
?Shavathon - R192 258
?Sanlam Cancer Challenge - R175  760
?Breast Health Walk - R391  023
?Relay For Life - R935  755
?Special Events - R168  357

?

?323 Health Programme volunteers
?171 Care and Support volunteers
?6 Administration volunteers
?130 Sustainability volunteers 

31 Liaison Committees

Partnerships
A successful road show took place in the newly developed 

area of Cradock with participation from the local 

municipality, the Departments of Health and Education, as 

well as councillors from Wards at Inxuba Yethemba. This 

has led to the public library staff managing a cancer 

information desk for the local community.

A working relationship has been established with the 

Departments of Water Affairs and Health and Nutrition. In 

addition, a partnership was established with the district 

hospital stoma departments in Port Elizabeth following 

stoma training provided by CANSA last year.

The Eastern Cape is very fortunate to have partnerships 

with the following entities:

V.W. Community Trust, ABSA Bank, First National Bank, 

Standard Bank, Sanlam, SABC, Nqubela FM Radio Station, 

Algoa FM, King Fischer Radio Station, Mthatha Community 

Radio Station, Queenstown Community Radio, Bay FM, 

Nashua, Tramarco International Trading, Board Walk 

Casino Port Elizabeth, La Femme Newspaper, Port 

Elizabeth Express, Algoa Sun, Department of Health, 

Department of Environment, Department of Education, 

Department of Agriculture, Department of Arts and 

Culture, Department of Social Development, Department 

of Transport, Bukani Printers, Mr J Mussa, various faith-

based institutions, Lions Clubs, Rotary Clubs, Johnson & 

Johnson and Tinkies Deliveries.

Screeningby Numbers

Support byNumbers

VolunteerSnapshot

CANSA Big Walk in Port Elizabeth

Eastern Cape  Provincial
& Regional Projects
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Free State/
Northern Cape
by Carien Hamman, Provincial Manager

Provincial Office
051 444 2580

Key Highlights
?In June 2010, the Katleho Interim Home was refurbished 

and expanded from a 65 to a 75 bed facility with 

R1 million previously raised from local business

?Also in June 2010, Dr Carl Albrecht, Head of Research, 

presented CANSA’s research programme to 

Bloemfontein’s medical community and general public 

during the provincial Cuppa For CANSA launch.

Dr Albrecht further visited the Bethlehem community 

where he presented on CANSA’s research programmes

?During the ‘Kalahari Kuier’ Art Festival, CANSA offered 

free clinical breast examinations at their stall. More than 

500 women were screened

?A march against smoking took place in Harrismith as 

part of the World No Tobacco Day initiative. The 

campaign was a partnership between CANSA and the 

Department of Health with participation from more than 

5 000 people and over 3 000 leaflets were distributed

?Sara Henrikson (27) from Sweden volunteered her time 

and talents at the Welkom office and sprayed 200 kids’ 

hair at the Bedelia Champion athletics day

?The Breast Cancer Walk arranged by Bloemfontein 

volunteers and sponsored by Pathcare and Siemens 

saw approximately 1 600 people taking part and 

generating R141 000

?A total of 16 golf clubs in the Lejweleputswa region 

(Welkom and Parys) participated in the Sanlam Cancer 

Challenge raising a record amount of R119 000. The 

Wesselbron Golf Club raised R67 000 with only 67 

players and won a prize for raising the most income. 

Thanks go to Willie Van Zyl, the Sanlam representative 

from Wesselbron and the local community for their 

support

?See letter on page 42.

?Pick n Pay Rhodesdene in association with CANSA 

Kimberley arranged a Jail n Bail fundraiser with 

entertainment by local celebrity Emo Adams and 

generated a record  R196  000

?81 104 people were reached 
with 1 867 talks on cancer awareness

?252 526 people were reached through 278 cancer 
awareness exhibitions, health days and health camps

?9 589 people were reached with 269 talks on 
screening and early detection

?6 678 people were reached through 20 screening and 
early detection exhibitions

?149 663 cancer awareness leaflets were distributed



We partnered with the Department
of Health (DoH) and conducted screening using our 
mobile health unit:
?4 037 Pap smears for cervical cancer 
?4 436 Breast examinations to detect breast lumps 
?1 088 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer 
?On average 5% abnormalities were detected in the 

total screenings in this province

?Patient care services provided 
to 3 789 cancer patients and their
families  

?32 960 patients were cared for at home
(home-based care)

?1 241 patients were accommodated at the two 
Interim Homes in Bloemfontein (18 356 bed-days)

?13 support groups established and maintained by 
cancer survivors assisted by volunteers 

?938 patients attended these support groups 
?Medical equipment and other assistive devices were 

made available to 387 patients
?9 513 patients were supported at oncology clinics 

whilst receiving cancer treatment

Fund Development
The following events were successfully championed with 
the help of our dedicated volunteers:
?Relay For Life - R1 775 144
?Shavathon - R391 384
?Sanlam Cancer Challenge - R373 789
?Kimberley Jail n Bail - R196 000
?Cuppa For CANSA - R248 053
?Breast Cancer Walk -  R141 000
?Special Regional Events - R572 025
?Other Income - R4 851 418

?95 Liaison Committees
?464 Health Programme volunteers
?767 Care and Support volunteers
?8 Administration volunteers
?432 Sustainability volunteers  

Partnerships
The Bloemfontein region established a partnership with 

Lesotho’s medical community and worked together to 

host a breast cancer banquet that was attended by 300 

stakeholders in Maseru during October 2010. 

CANSA Upington entered into a working agreement with 

the ‘Kalahari Kuier’ Art Festival. CANSA was given the 

opportunity to do awareness of breast cancer and clinical 

breast examinations.

Special Thanks
We are extremely grateful towards the communities and 

partners of the Free State/Northern Cape for their generous 

support. Time, money and resources of the people of these 

two provinces ensured that thousands of patients received 

much needed care and that the communities were reached 

with health programmes - thank you very much to all.

The Lottery Distribution Trust Fund, Imperial Bank, 

Dis-Chem Foundation, ABSA, Itec, Cube Architects, Frik 

Jankowitz and Van Zyl Quantity Surveyors all deserve 

special mention as their support made the refurbishment 

and expansion of our Katleho Interim Home possible.

Screeningby Numbers

VolunteerSnapshot

Support byNumbers

Refurbished Katleho Interim Home Kimberley students displaying their support for CANSA

FS/NC Provincial & Regional Projects
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Gauteng
by Joel Perry, Provincial Manager

Provincial Office
011 615 4425

Key Highlights
?On International Survivors Day, in June, survivors were 

greeted with a warm and inspirational text message 

from CANSA's CEO. Cancer survivors attended special 

functions across Gauteng during that period

?Throughout June, including Youth Day (16 June), we 

promoted health awareness programmes such as anti-

tobacco and balanced lifestyles to our youth 

?As part of 'CANSA on the Move for the Youth', more than 

2 500 people and about 700 children's hair were sprayed 

at the annual Winter Show in Carletonville

?CANSA’s Tough Living with Cancer (TLC) programme 

was also promoted at the Winter Show with Wimpy 

Carletonville sponsoring a party for all child cancer 

survivors and their parents

?Anglogold Ashanti donated R30 000 to CANSA for the 

TLC project in our community

?In June, a Men's Health cancer awareness day was 

hosted at the South African Department of International 

Affairs (Foreign Affairs)

?More than 250 women participated in a special AON 

Corporate Women's Health Day in August 2010 on the 

West Rand where they were educated via health talks 

and exhibitions. A total of 30 women were screened for 

breast cancer

?Shavathon income and participation grew by an average 

of 40%. Top executives (Alphonso Raats and Chris 

Viljoen) at Stanlib raised R251 000 in support of cancer 

survivors

?Soweto hosted its first Relay For Life experience in 

March 2011 with senior officials from the American 

Cancer Society (ACS) attending the event

?CANSA West Rand moved premises to Ontdekkers 

Road, Roodepoort. It provides us with shop front 

visibility and its infrastructure lends itself to CANSA's 

new Care Centre concept, with extra space for our other 

programmes and  activities within the region

?The Roodepoort Chamber of Commerce once again 

recognised CANSA West Rand as 'Leaders in 

Community Development', firmly establishing their 

presence in this community

?CANSA Southern Gauteng hosted a Jail n Bail at the Glen 

Shopping Centre that was supported by celebrities such 

as Mr South Africa, Khabo Nina, Nambitha Mpulwana 

and Loyiso Bala and generated R51 000

?In November Anglogold Ashanti donated an additional 

R1 200 to CANSA Carletonville at a cheque handover 

which took place underground at the deepest point of a 

mine based in that region (3 870m). AngloGold Ashanti 

currently holds the world record for the deepest mine

?Northern Gauteng was the beneficiary for the Bakwena 

Corporate Golf Day that raised R54 000
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?40 313 people were reached
with 432 talks on cancer awareness

?56 917 people were reached through 309 cancer 
awareness exhibitions, health days and health camps

?7 298 people were reached with 151 talks on 
screening and early detection

?5 230 people were reached through 80 screening and 
early detection exhibitions

?167 623 cancer awareness leaflets were distributed

We partnered with the 
Department of Health (DoH) 
and conducted screening using our mobile health unit:
?1 031 Pap smears for cervical cancer plus177 with DoH
?1 024 Breast examinations to detect breast lumps 

plus133 with DoH
?154 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer plus12 with DoH
?9 Skin examinations to check for skin cancers and 26 

FotoFinder examinations to check for skin cancers
?On average 6% abnormalities were detected in the 

total screenings in this province

?Patient care services provided
to 1 260 cancer patients and their
families

?1 989 patients were cared for at home
(home-based care)

?914 patients were accommodated at the Interim 
Homes in Gauteng (8 908 bed-days)

?68 support groups established and maintained by 
cancer survivors assisted by volunteers 

?2 057 patients attended these support groups 
?Medical equipment and other assistive devices were 

made available to 1 062 patients
?738 patients were supported at oncology clinics 

whilst receiving cancer treatment

Fund Development
The following events were successfully championed with 
the help of our dedicated volunteers:
?Relay For Life - R529 138
?Shavathon - R2  670  859
?Cuppa For CANSA - R310 152
?Sanlam Cancer Challenge - R426 375
?Soweto Jail n Bail - R51 000
?Special events - R3 457 467
?Rooi Rose Tea - R200 000
?Teledonations - R1 966 976

?

?275 Health Programme volunteers
?275 Care and Support volunteers
?22 Administration volunteers
?308 Sustainability volunteers  

27 Liaison Committees

Gauteng  Provincial & Regional Projects

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

0

Tel
ed

onat
io

ns

Spec
ia
l E

ve
nts

Ja
il 
n B

ai
l

Tap
-T

ap

56

HealthAwarenessby Numbers

Screeningby Numbers

Support byNumbers
VolunteerSnapshot

2009 2010 2011

R’m



Specific mention of the following sponsors, donors or 

partners must be made:

All golf clubs that have participated in the Sanlam Cancer 

Challenge, Soweto Country Club, Department of Health 

and Social Development, Walkerville Agricultural Society, 

Legal Wise, Selby Blankets, Rand Water, Virgin Active, Rooi 

Rose Magazine, Arville's Doggy Parlor, Silver Star Casino, 

Roodepoort Record, Northside Chronicle, Pro-Media, Tiger 

Brands and Chantelle van der West of Hair Zone. Wes 

Beeld, Krugersdorp News, Get It Magazine, Roodepoort 

Record, Standard Bank, UASA, Renault SA, Stanlib, Franco 

Sport, Anglogold Ashanti, Copperstone Promotions, 

Department of Social Development, Lenasia Athletics 

Club, Liberty Life, Sondag Koerant, Afrisam, Plascon, 

Oxygen Ultimate Model, Teresa & Chellaine - Comrades 

Marathon - Relay for Life, Biotene National, Medicross 

Roodepoort and Krugersdorp, Netcare Krugersdorp Private 

Hospital Netcare 911, Hubb-Less Challken, West Side 

Story, ROCCI, Glenburn Lodge, Noordheuwel High School, 

Roodebeeck Primary, Kenmare Primary, Angela Middelton- 

Hosted a very big CUPPA, Hayleigh - Monument Checkers, 

Incredible Connection, Summer Place - East Rand and 

shopping centres.

Partnerships
We have initiated 132 new partnerships in the past year to 

support our service delivery as well as our fund 

development capability. The Department of Social 

Development continues to support the Lukholweni Interim 

Home in Soweto.

The following media are our partners in Gauteng - SABC 2, 

Soweto TV, Primedia, Jozi FM and Kaya FM.

Special Thanks
We hereby express our thanks and appreciation to all our 

volunteers, donors and supporters for their kindness, 

commitment and continued support to us and for the 

cause of cancer control in South Africa. You have worked 

side by side with us and your support has inspired us when 

it mattered most. The success of this organisation is your 

success.

To all our staff and families, thank you for your 

commitment, hard work, time and sacrifices for the greater 

cause of fighting cancer and providing support to all those 

affected by cancer.

Soweto hosted its first Relay For Life experience - celebrating life during

the survivors lap and remembering those lost to cancer (luminaria ceremony)
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KwaZulu-Natal
by Lorraine Govender, 
Provincial Manager

Provincial Office
031 205 9525

Key Highlights
?On World Cancer Day (4 February 2011) the World 

Cancer Declaration was signed at the apex of the Moses 

Madiba stadium in Durban with more than 200 

signatures  collected on the day

?CANSA ‘s Mkhuhla Interim Home was adopted by BHP 

Billiton and renovated with the support of the Fulton 

Trust, various donors and the community

?On 18 September 2010 the Sharks rugby team showed 

their support for cancer survivors by turning the ABSA 

stadium in Durban pink for their game against the 

Vodacom Free State Cheetahs

?Women golfers wanting to raise awareness and funds 

for CANSA’s Women’s Health campaign took part in the 

very popular Ladies Pink Golf Day in Amajuba, near 

Newscastle, in October 2010

?Coast2Coast4CANSA - the epic 2 800km jet ski journey 

from the Mozambique border to the Namibian border 

took place in April/May 2010 and raised funds and 

awareness for cancer and CANSA. Championed by 

Russel Symcox and his crew, the income raised resulted 

in the purchase of a FotoFinder skin cancer screening 

device for Kwa-Zulu Natal

?The ‘Night of 1 000 stars’ was aired by Mosiac TV and 

remains a popular event supported by many theatre-

goers in Durban

?Last year the small KwaZulu-Natal community of 

Estcourt raised R70 000 at their RFL event while the 

South Coast region held its first RFL event during March 

2010 when R150 000 was raised by 72 participating 

teams and 2 000 attendees

?

with 308 talks on cancer awareness
?43 247 people were reached through 160 cancer 

awareness exhibitions, health days and health camps
?6 659 people were reached with 82 talks on screening 

and early detection
?5 674 people were reached through 56 screening and 

early detection exhibitions
?48 209 cancer awareness leaflets were distributed

35 110 people were reached 

HealthAwarenessby Numbers



In partnership with the Department 
of Health (DoH) we conducted screening using our 
mobile health unit. A further partnership with ABSA and 
Ampath Laboratory was instrumental in early detection 
programmes being implemented
?769 Pap smears for cervical cancer plus 195 with DoH
?1 400 Breast examinations to detect breast lumps plus 

63 with DoH
?1 992 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer plus 21 with DoH
?140 Skin examinations and 275 FotoFinder 

examinations to check for skin cancers
?On average 6% abnormalities were detected in the 

total screenings in this province

?Patient care services provided
to 955 cancer patients and their 
families

?1 088 patients were cared for at home
(home-based care)

?373 patients were accommodated at the Interim 
Homes in KwaZulu-Natal (4 123 bed days)

?27 support groups established and maintained by 
cancer survivors assisted by volunteers 

?963 patients attended these support groups 
?Medical equipment and other assistive devices were 

made available to 88 patients
?2 799 patients were supported at oncology clinics 

whilst receiving cancer treatment

Fund Development
The following events were successfully championed with 
the help of our dedicated volunteers:
?Relay For Life  events - R937 057 
?Sanlam Cancer Challenge – R231 932
?Shavathon  - R713 000
?Cuppa For CANSA - R575 602 
?Jail n Bail – R487 232
?Night of 1000 stars – R136 000

?

?391 Health Programme volunteers
?208 Care and Support volunteers
?6 Administration volunteers
?307 Sustainability volunteers  

22 Liaison Committees

Screeningby Numbers

Support byNumbers

Partnerships
Media, being one of the most able resources to transmit 

our message, have given us considerable coverage, in 

particular the Zululand Observer and e.tv for which we are 

extremely grateful.

Timefreight takes care of all our courier and freight 

requirements, free of charge. 

We are extremely grateful to SunCoast Casino and 

Entertainment World for their continued support and 

partnership.

A special word of thanks to all volunteers for their loyalty 

and commitment to CANSA. Our sincere gratitude to all 

staff for the dedication, hard work and going the extra mile 

to ensure the rendering of services, despite challenging 

conditions and staff shortages. We extend our thanks and 

appreciation to all partners, the Rotarians, Round Table, 

Rotary Anns and corporations who assisted us to provide 

services and become more sustainable.

Special Thanks
A special thank you to our valued sponsors:
A R Luke, ABSA Foundation, Beekman Brothers, Ballito 

Support Group, BHP Billiton, Botanical Society 

Pietermaritzburg, Clicks, Community Chest, Durban North 

Sai Centre, Durban North Support Group, DV Moss, Draper, 

East Coast Radio, Fed Nissan Newcastle, Flushwell 

Plumbers, Grinaker LTA (Pty) Ltd, Haselgrove, J Louw & K 

Loukakis, Lions, Pick n Pay KZN, Port Shepstone, Lions 

Ethekweni, Lotus FM, LC Manufacturing, MBB Consulting, 

Monitor Distribution (Natal), Mr Price Stadium, Natal 

Witness Southcoast, NPC, Old Mutual Durban, Parklands 

Hospital, Q Moideen, Richards Bay Chemicals, Rotary Club 

Morningside, Rotary Club Reservoir Hills, Round Table 

Margate, Shoprite Checkers, Southcoast Fever, 

Southcoast Herald, SunCoast Casino and Entertainment 

World, SuperRent, The Fulton Trust, The Victor Daitz 

Foundation, The Zululand Observer, Timefreight, Vreede 

Vreede, Westmead Logistics, Westville Prison and 

Woolworths.
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Mpumalanga
by Lorraine Kleinhans, 
Provincial Manager

Provincial Office
013 741 5441

Key Highlights
?Known water pollution in Groblersdal, Mpumalanga, 

was brought to CANSA's research department's 

attention to investigate the occurrence of water and air 

pollution and the impact on fresh produce crops

?Awareness of the harming effects of the sun was raised 

at sporting events at schools, advocating the use of the 

CANSA Seal of Recognition approved sunscreen 

products

?Tap-Tap (Toktokkie) visited schools and other public 

events to promote 'Be smart, Don't start' anti-tobacco 

awareness

?The 'CANSA on the Move for the Youth' was successfully 

introduced at a two-day exhibition at the i'Langa Mall in 

Nelspruit where 10 500 visitors visited the exhibition and 

over 500 children's faces were painted

?Men's Health was promoted through symposia and 

wellness days at workplaces and the government 

Departments of Health and Education

?CANSA staff and debutantes actively promoted health 

messages at Innibos Arts Festival, reaching 

approximately 94 000 people

?We hosted an inauguration ceremony on 22 July 2010 in 

Nelspruit to officially open our new provincial office that 

was built on the premises of the Sappi CANSA House

?In November 2010, Witbank and Nelspruit held 

networking events where our CANSA CEO presented 

CANSA's strategic purpose to the various business 

communities

?We acknowledged and celebrated International 

Survivors Day with local cancer survivors

?Recognition was given to our volunteers in both 

Highveld and Lowveld regions as part of International 

Volunteers Day in December 2010

?The annual 'Tea on the Terrace' event spearheaded by 

leader volunteer, Brenda Archdeacon, had as their guest 

speaker former Olympic South African swimmer Ryk 

Neethling

?The 'Night of 1 000 Stars' was driven by leader volunteer 

Sandra Jacobs and enjoyed the participation of 23 local 

restaurants who charmed 700 guests with their culinary 

delights in a cordoned off street in Nelspruit 

?An exciting Women's Health awareness campaign was 

held in October 2010 at the new Mbombela Soccer 

Stadium, with over 400 women depicting a pink breast 

health awareness ribbon across the stadium with 

participation from Rensburg and Partners (pathologists), 

Medi-Clinic, Dis-Chem Pharmacy and local oncologists

?Sandra Jacobs, a long-time leader volunteer from 

Nelspruit, was elected to represent CANSA at the Relay 

For Life (RFL) Summit held in the USA during July 2010. 

Based on her professional and well-received 

presentation, International RFL extended another 

invitation to her to attend the European RFL conference 

held in Dublin in October 2010

?Ann Neethling, long-time leader volunteer from 

Lydenburg, received the prestigious Mariette Loots 

Award last year for providing 22 years of outstanding 

community service
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with 448 talks on cancer awareness
?156 209 people were reached through 189 cancer 

awareness exhibitions, health days and health camps
?5 167 people were reached with 99 talks on screening 

and early detection
?7 525 people were reached through 77 screening and 

early detection exhibitions
?33 229 cancer awareness leaflets were distributed

In partnership with the 
Department of Health (DoH) we 
conducted screening using our mobile health unit:
?146 Pap smears for cervical cancer plus 479 with DoH
?886 Breast examinations to detect breast lumps plus 

18 with DoH
?30 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer
?346 Skin examinations to check for skin cancers
?On average 3% abnormalities were detected in the 

total screenings in this province

?Patient care services provided 
to 1 559 cancer patients and their
families

?12 662 patients were cared for at home
(home-based care)

?9 support groups established and maintained by 
cancer survivors assisted by volunteers

?250 patients attended these support groups 
?Medical equipment and other assistive devices were 

made available to 68 patients
?616 patients were supported at oncology clinics 

whilst receiving cancer treatment

37 762 people were reached 

Fund Development
The following events were successfully championed
with the help of our dedicated volunteers:
?Relay For Life  - R422 639 
?Cuppa For CANSA - R89 349
?Sanlam Cancer Challenge - R100 733 
?Shavathon  - R304 060
?46 Debutantes from 8 schools - R484 700 
?Tea on the Terrace and Night of 1 000  Stars - R214 699 
?Tap-Tap (Toktokkie) - R56  757

?

?236 Health Programme volunteers
?222 Care and Support volunteers
?2 Administration volunteers
?246 Sustainability volunteers  

29 Liaison Committees

An exciting Women's Health awareness 

campaign was held in October 2010 at the new

Mbombela Soccer Stadium, with over 400 

women depicting a pink breast health awareness

ribbon across the stadium
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Partnerships
CANSA Mpumalanga thanks every person/institution who 

has enabled, supported and assisted us to enhance our 

services in the communities we serve. At the base lies a 

passionate staff corps who, together with our dedicated 

volunteers, serve diligently, loyally and tirelessly - the 

heartbeat of CANSA Mpumalanga. We applaud you all.

CANSA Mpumalanga acknowledges and appreciates the 

following partners: 

Highveld: Sasol Secunda, BHP Billiton, Ferro Chrome 

Witbank, Anglo Coal Witbank, SIS Farming, Siya Tutuka, 

Clinics at Belfast, Middelburg (Provincial) and Secunda, 

Oncology Drs Paradza and Patterson; also for special 

services to Umsini Health, Mugg & Bean Witbank, Protea 

Hotel Witbank, Midgas, Middelburg Fire Department, 

Langamed Ambulance Services, Witbank News, 

Middelburg Observer, Echo Ridge, Highveld Ridge, Masa 

Graphics, Kanonkop Apteek, Radio Kragbron, Hollister 

Stoma, Highveld Mall and Safeway’s Mall.
Lowveld: Pick n Pay Nelspruit, South African Social 

Security Agency (SASSA), AgriQ, Hosanna Hospice, Spar 

DC, Grip, Medi-Clinic Nelspruit, TUT Nelspruit, Drs van 

Rensburg & Partners, Oncologists Drs Henri Neethling and 

Sarita Retief; also for special services rendered by Lowveld 

Sound Promotions, Avroy Schlain, Nou’s Toeka, Timeless 

Functions, MPower FM, Radio Laeveld, Lowveld Media, 

Mica, Lowveld Chamber of Business & Tourism, ICE events 

co-ordinators, Juweelkuns, Ingwenyama Lodge, Dis-

Chem, Hervormde Kerk Belladonna Street, Lowveld 

Favourites, Micon, Amazing Water, Pestana Hotel 

Malalane, Milky Lane, Damelin, i’Langa Mall, Crossings 

Mall, Riverside Mall and Mbombela Stadium.

Special Thanks
Highveld Region received a substantial and much 

appreciated donation from Kuyasa Mining (Pty) Ltd. These 

monies will greatly assist in the establishment of the 

CANSA Care Centre in the Witbank Office and the support 

of other Care and Health Services in the Region. We also 

thank Sappi (Lowveld) and Sasol (Secunda-Highveld) for 

their generous cash contributions.

The following donors have also contributed most 

meaningfully to sustaining our services throughout the 

province: Peermont Global, Sterling Labour Hire, 

Sibanoyoni Industrial Suppliers, The Discounter, East Side 

Coal, Union Refractories, L Matteuci, Silicon Melters, E 

Bernardo, Dr W Osler, JA Chegwidden, Let’s Trade, Front 

Door Property, GC van Eeden, A Blom, Seflex Witbank, 

Jenna Clifford, Mr Joosub, Nic & SMè van Zyl 

Liefdadigheidstrust.

We thank the donors for monthly debit order contributions 

over many years: 

Lowveld: Mr Barry Collier, PM van Lingen 

Highveld: Mr Sweeney and an anonymous contributor who 

donates R400 per month

Over a number of years ABSA has been a significant 

sponsor and supporter at our events in the Lowveld, 

notably CANSA Relay For Life.

Institutions who have served us well through generous 

donations in kind and/or greatly reduced charges: Doug’s 

Hiring; Improvements to Highveld Office premises: Ferro 

Metals (improvements), Greenside Mine (security fence), 

Anglo Group (roof); MPower Radio and Radio Kragbron 

(airtime coverage various events); Kobus Jacobs - Sonpark 

Boulevard and Casterbridge.

The annual

 'Tea on the Terrace'
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North West/
Limpopo
by Wilma Jennings, 
Provincial Manager

Provincial Office
014 594 2424

Key Highlights
?Mokopane municipal workers and CANSA volunteers 

visited the municipal buildings to witness the mayor 

signing the World Cancer Declaration as part of World 

Cancer Day celebrations

?To promote World No Tobacco Day in May 2010, 

‘Nicotine gangs’ ran through the Klerksdorp Mall raising 

awareness of the dangers of smoking and the Tap-Tap 

(Toktokkie) mascot visited schools - introducing Tap-Tap 

(Toktokkie) hand puppets to all the regions

?SunSmart campaigns were run at the Valley of the 

Waves at Sun City in December as well as SunSmart and 

lifestyle exhibitions presented at the African Island in the 

Hartebeespoort area

?The ‘CANSA on the Move with the Youth’ was launched 

in Limpopo at the Crossings Mall in Mokopane with Tap-

Tap (Toktokkie) and friends reaching over 1 000 children 

?In the greater Rustenburg area, Pulane Productions 

presented healthy living puppet shows at local schools

?In support of International Survivors Day, a children’s 

party was held at the Polokwane hospital - child cancer 

survivors participated in festivities and painted the faces 

of doctors and nursing staff

?Also celebrating International Survivors Day, a fancy- 

dress party for child cancer survivors (sponsored by 

Woolworths) was held in the Mokopane Mall, 

Waterberg region

?CANSA North West was once again the beneficiary of 

the Powerade Lost City Cycle Race, raising R150 000 

while cancer screening of 250 people took place

?Polokwane hosted a networking event where our 

CANSA CEO presented CANSA’s strategic purpose to 

the local business community

?NTP Radioisotopes (Pty) Ltd (NTP), a subsidiary of the 

South African Nuclear Energy Corporation (NECSA), 

sponsored screening tests (Pap smears and PSA tests) 

in Madibeng and Moretele, as well as at Sun City with 

the CANSA mobile health unit

?Tienie Botes, leader volunteer in the Waterberg region, 

was the winner of the 2010 National Mariette Loots 

Cancer Trust Award

?87 148 people were reached 

with 850 talks on cancer awareness

?91 624 people were reached through 211 cancer 

awareness exhibitions, health days and health 

camps

?5 167 people were reached with 20 talks on 

screening and early detection

?2 685 people were reached through 97 screening 

and early detection exhibitions

?129 575 cancer awareness leaflets were distributed
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Partnerships
Some of our major partnerships include the Lost City Cycle 

Event partners, who again organised a Lost City Cycle Race 

for the cycling community for the benefit of CANSA. Thank 

you to Rustenburg's Bergsig Academy who continue to 

provide their school as a venue for the Relay For Life of 

Rustenburg 

This year NTP were partners in the pilot project, 'Ride for 

Hope', a cycling event under the auspices of the Lost City, 

bringing cyclists from as far afield as Musina to participate 

in a journey of hope and courage. We want to thank the 

South African cyclists for their tremendous support of this 

event.

Grateful thanks go to the Department of Health, 

Potchefstroom, in assisting with the training of health 

workers in the Potchefstroom region. 

Special Thanks
The general public of the North West and Limpopo 

provinces; all media partners of both North West and 

Limpopo provinces, Sun International: Alistair Roper and 

team including Sun City Resort, The Citizen: Claire Souter, 

ABI (Coke) Powerade: Riette de Jager and Amelda Gouws, 

McCarthy Audi, Leon's Auto, Nestlé Rustenburg, 

NTP/NECSA, LCCR, race organiser Johan du Toit and 

committee, Cycling News magazine, Wynand de Villiers, 

The Lost City, Cycle Lab, Implats, Anglo Plats Rustenburg, 

Xtrata, Al’s Plant Hire, North West University: SJGD 

(Students Representative Council), North West University: 

campus management and students, Anglo Gold, 

Potchefstroom Rotary Club, Old Mutual Potchefstroom, 

Cutting Edge, Thomas Afslaers, Mega City, Mmabatho, 

KFC, Global, Pick n Pay: Mokopane and Bela Bela, Corne 

van Heerden, All Seasons Function Hire in Polokwane, 

Mogalakwena Platinum Mine in Mokopane, Lancet in 

Mokopane, NTK LA in Limpopo, Agric (Pty) Ltd - 

Modimolle, Anglo Plats in Mokopane.

In partnership with the 
Department of Health (DoH) we conducted screening 
using our mobile health unit:
?1 052 Pap smears for cervical cancer plus 20 with DoH
?1 377 Breast examinations to detect breast lumps plus 

1 with DoH
?216 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer (21 with DoH)
?744 Skin examinations to check for skin cancers
?On average 3% abnormalities were detected in the 

total screenings in this province

?Patient care services provided 
to 1 194 cancer patients and their
families

?3 383 patients were cared for at home 
(home-based care)

?1 494 patients were accommodated at the Interim 
Homes in North West and Limpopo (2 753 bed-days)

?15 support groups established and maintained by 
cancer survivors assisted by volunteers 

?438 patients attended these support groups 
?Medical equipment and other assistive devices were 

made available to 635 patients
?1 546 patients were supported at oncology clinics 

whilst receiving cancer treatment

Fund Development
The following events were successfully championed with 
the help of our dedicated volunteers:
?Relay For Life - R1 635 186
?Shavathon - R376  562
?Cuppa For CANSA - R116  561
?Sanlam Cancer Challenge - R215  807
?Powerade Lost City Cycle Race - R150  000
?Jail n Bail - R472 170

?

?143 Health Programme volunteers
?197 Care and Support volunteers
?20 Administration volunteers
?460 Sustainability volunteers

31 Liaison Committees

North West/Limpopo
 Provincial & Regional Projects
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Western Cape
by Stephanie van Deventer, 
Provincial Manager

Provincial Office
021 689 5347

Key Highlights
?CANSA Western Cape received CANSA’s National 

Award as the Best Performing Province

?International Survivors Day was celebrated by hosting 

functions in 12 towns across the Province that were 

attended by 240 survivors accompanied by caregivers 

or family members

?Two new Interim Homes were launched during July 

2010, the new lodging facility at Tygerberg Hospital and 

the Irma Bruschi Interim Home in George providing 

accommodation to 42 more patients

?In the West Coast region we now have five palliative 

in-patient units at old age homes providing care to 

terminally ill patients

?The ladies of Soroptomist International (Cape of Good 

Hope group), who were trained as Peer Educators, 

donated R16 000 towards breast health awareness

?Female employees at Southern Oil Limited 

(manufacturers of Canola Oil, a CANSA Smart Choice 

product) in Swellendam all underwent screening for 

breast cancer

?The SunSmart campaign targeted schools creating 

awareness on the prevention of skin cancer through 

safe sun practices. Clicks, in partnership with CANSA, 

ran skin clinics during sporting events at schools in the 

Southern Cape, Metro and Boland/Overberg and 

beaches along the Cape Coast and inland recreational 

facilities such as Goudini Spa

?A highly successful anti-tobacco launch was held in 

Cape Town on World No Tobacco Day, 31 May 2010, in 

partnership with the Provincial Department of Health, 

Heart and Stroke Foundation, as well as the City of Cape 

Town Environmental Health and local community forum 

members

?Anti-tobacco awareness was promoted in various 

activities at schools across the Province culminating in 

Youth Day events highlighting the dangers of hookah 

pipes, smokelizer tests and using ‘Smoking Suzie’ as an 

educational tool

?In Boland, a health camp was held on balanced lifestyle 

while the most common cancers were addressed at the 

Cape Peninsula University of Technology in Wellington 

in September 2010

?The Movember campaign was a platform to highlight 

our Men’s Health campaign creating awareness of 

prostate and testicular cancer and we teamed up with 

private laboratories for PSA testing at reduced rates 

?The mobile health clinic in the West Coast region 

reached women in deep rural areas and offered them 

screening for breast and cervical cancer

?The well-known ‘Mamma-bus’ (sponsored by CANSA) 

again travelled from Vredendal to the Mamma clinic at 

Panorama Hospital to offer rural women access to 

mammography screening

?Good Hope FM partnered with CANSA Cape Metro and 

ran a ‘Touch Yourself’ breast awareness campaign 

during their live breakfast show

?Dr Carl Albrecht, Head of Research, acted as guest 

speaker at various events in the Province, emphasising 

CANSA’s watchdog role

?In October 2010 a group of 72 women (all dressed in 

pink) attended a breast cancer talk at Schoongezight, 

Philadelphia. 35 Women departed on a 22 km horseback 

ride and another 37 hitched a ride on a tractor and 

wagon through wheat and canola fields
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?In Kleinzee in Namaqualand, a golf club with only seven 

members raised R11 000 as part of the Sanlam Cancer 

Challenge

?The Coast2Coast4CANSA expedition created a lot of 

hype and awareness in the towns of Mossel Bay, 

Hermanus, Cape Town, Saldanha Bay and Port Nolloth

?The second consecutive ‘Pink Ellie’ Cuppa For CANSA 

event raised R50 000

?The small community of Komaggas in Namaqualand, 

with an unemployment rate of 60%, raised R2 520 and in 

another town nearby, Aggeneys, raised R7 750

?Successful Cuppa events were also hosted in 

Stellenbosch and Beaufort West

?In February 2011, Media and Training Centre for Health 

(a media company) sponsored media training for 

volunteers in the Boland and Atlantis regions

?Three volunteers received Mariette Loots Awards and 

25 volunteers were honoured with gold certificates

?85 479 people were reached 
with 1 897 talks on cancer awareness

?82 213 people were reached through 309 cancer 
awareness exhibitions, health days and health camps

?12 283 people were reached with 927 talks on 
screening and early detection

?25 468 people were reached through 97 screening 
and early detection exhibitions

?86 313 cancer awareness leaflets were distributed

In partnership with the Department 
of Health (DoH) we conducted screening using our 
mobile health unit:
?2 932 Pap smears for cervical cancer plus 

2 425 with DoH
?5 108 Breast examinations to detect breast lumps plus 

1 177 with DoH
?2 109 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer
?436 Skin examinations to check for skin cancers 

and 14 FotoFinder examinations to check for skin 
cancers

?On average 6% abnormalities were detected in the 
total screenings in this Province

?Patient care services provided 
to 3 067 cancer patients and their
families

?24 803 patients were cared for at home
(home-based care)

?668 patients were accommodated at the Interim 
Homes in the Western Cape (7 128 bed-days)

?19 support groups established and maintained by 
cancer survivors assisted by volunteers 

?1 402 patients attended these support groups 
?Medical equipment and other assistive devices were 

made available to 1 111 patients
?28 974 patients were supported at oncology clinics 

whilst receiving cancer treatment

SunSmart 

awareness at the 

ATKV Goudini 

Spa during 

November 2010
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CANSA’s partnership with the
Department of Public Health and Family Medicine as well 
as the Primary Health Care Directorate of the University 
of Cape Town entered into its fourth year:  

th
?During the year, the 4  year MBChB students did 

research on determining the needs of carers and 
families of people living with cancer in Bonteheuwel. 
Another group researched the perception and 
practices around a Meat Free Day (a concept of the 
City of Cape Town) per week and the knowledge and 
beliefs of diet-related diseases amongst attendees at 
two Clinics in Elsies River. 

?A third group of students did research on the 
knowledge, beliefs and practices about cancer and 
CANSA’s support services amongst attendees at 
Grassy Park Community Health Centre (CHC) and in 
the community (house-to-house). 

?The students developed an educational tool on the 
dangers of the Hookah Pipe and CANSA is now taking 
the learners through a peer education programme to 
create more awareness on the dangers of smoking. 
This theme ‘Dangers of the Hookah Pipe’ also formed 

ththe focus of five 4  year UCT medical students who did 
research on the knowledge, beliefs and perceptions 
on the Hookah Pipe amongst attendees of the 
Clothing Industry Clinic in Mitchell’s Plain.  

?

Fund Development
The following events were successfully championed with 
the help of our dedicated volunteers:
?Relay For Life - R2 378 236
?Sanlam Cancer Challenge - R834  019
?Shavathon - R635  481
?Cuppa For CANSA events - R504 814
?Regional special events - R707  281 

?

?419 Health Programme volunteers
?943 Care and Support volunteers
?18 Administration volunteers
?583 Sustainability volunteers  

76 Liaison Committees

Partnerships
We have had a very successful partnership with the 

Department of Social Development for a number of years 

and we are extremely grateful for their substantial annual 

grant. The Department of Health also gives great support 

for our screening clinics in rural areas.

In the George region talks were held with GVI George and 

the George Hospital regarding the radiation of state 

patients in our region. This led to the signing of an 

agreement assuring that an agreed number of state 

patients will receive treatment in the George private 

hospital.

A follow up meeting with management from the Tygerberg 

Hospital resulted in another successful agreement with 

CANSA to continue running the Lodging Facility for cancer 

patients on the hospital grounds.  

th thA partnership with 4  and 5  year medical students of the 

University of Stellenbosch resulted in assistance for our 

Tough Living with Cancer (TLC) programme looking at the 

needs of families and children affected by cancer.

The West Coast Region enjoyed the support of the 

Department of Health and various businesses in the area to 

reach women in towns like Saldanha Bay, Redelinghuys, 

Velddrif, Graafwater, Urionskraal, Illingilethu and Lamberts 

Bay to conduct cancer screening. 

ResearchSnapshot

CANSA Western Cape received 

CANSA’s National Award as the 

Best Performing Province

Western Cape  Provincial
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Special Thanks
None of CANSA’s prevention, early detection, care 

programmes or fundraising efforts would be possible 

without our dedicated team of staff and volunteers. We 

thank and salute you all. We also acknowledge each and 

every individual, corporate, institution and trust for 

donations received. Your contribution is highly valued and 

has enabled us to provide and maintain our service level 

excellence in the Western Cape.

?We are grateful to the following towns that 

supported our Relay For Life (RFL) events:
Springbok, Mitchell’s Plain, Northern Suburbs in Cape 

Town, Athlone, Worcester, Caledon, Hermanus, 

Stellenbosch, Ceres, Paarl, George, Mossel Bay, 

Oudtshoorn, Heidelberg, Porterville, Vredenburg and 

Malmesbury. We were all amazed at the creative ways in 

which teams went about raising awareness and income 

for the RFL project, including Jail n Bail events in Paarl 

where the RFL Event Chairperson, Dirk Burger, was 

locked up in a replica of a prison cell and had to be bailed 

out by supporters.  

?Boland/Overberg:
Overstrand Municipality, Theewaterskloof Municipality, 

VLV Caledon

?Provincial / Cape Metro Office:
Carrol Boyes Functional Art CC, House of JD, 

Soroptimist, International Cape of Good Hope, W van 

Wyk, (Nexusag), Mottan Jeram Patel, Radiological 

Society of South Africa, SPI, CEC Sedgwick (Pty) Ltd, 

Coronation Asset Management (Pty) Ltd, Miglio (Pty) 

Ltd, Engen Petroleum Limited, Metropolitan Health 

Corporate (Pty) Ltd, AGS van SA, Radio Tygerberg, 

University of Cape Town, Truworths, Nuco Power & 

Control CC, Engen, Imperial Toyota

?Klein Karoo / Southern Cape:
Irma Brushi, Triton Express, Petrol SA, Kharafi 

Hospitality (Pty) Ltd, Afrihost, Coca Cola, Obesa 

Liefdadigheids Trust

?West Coast:
Exxaro Namakwasands, Mnr Eigelaar (Velddrif), Eric 

Chemkonsult, Transnet, Oranje Vis, St. Helena Bay 

Fishing, Rooibos, Bokomo, Lamberts Bay Foods, JB’s 

Nissan, Akker Dyk Gemeente, Thea Diedericks, SEEFF 

Eiendomme, Francor Bakery, B & A Clutch & Radiator, 

Deon van Zyl Transport, Pioneer Foods, Club Mykonos

?Springbok:
De Beers, Black Mountain, Cross Roads Distributions, 

Jowells

?

?

?

?

?

?

Trusts and Bequests received by the 

Western Cape Province

?Trusts:
Isidore Choritz Charitable Trust, J.E.T. Lee Will Trust, 

Joan Walton Charitable Trust, Joel Pollen Charity Trust, 

Kurt & Joey Strauss Foundation, L. & D.M. Ladan 

Charitable Trust, L.Z. Kaplan Will Trust, Leo & Patricia 

Fine Foundation Trust, Lily Ashton Charitable Trust, 

Lynette Croudace Fund, Malherbe Charles & Betts Trust, 

Mathers Trust, Renier van Rooyen Trustfonds, Roland & 

Jean Richardson Trust, Rolf-Stephan Nussbaum 

Foundation, S.D. van der Merwe Trust, Saunders Trust, 

Sidney Schonegevel Benevolent Trust, Sister Ellen 

McKinlay Trust, Susman Charitable Foundation, T.S.  

Berwitz Will Trust, Violet & Hyman Kaplan Will Trust

?Bequests:
M.J. Barkett, E.F. Tice, E.W. Koster, G.C.J. Simpson, 

G.H.C. Gerber, H.C. Buchholz, H.J. Crafford, Irene Fick, J. 

Saayman, J.D. Dreyer, J.R. O'Reilly, J.S. Marais, N. Oates, 

N.D. van Niekerk, N.H. Haupt, R.E. Fendick, S. Fleurot, S. 

Gavronsky, S.M.M. Berry

?

?

Relay For Life Paarl event chair

Dirk Burger taking part in a team 

fundraiser - Jail n Bail
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The directors of the company are responsible for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records and the 

preparation and integrity of the annual financial 

statements and related information.  The annual financial 

statements have been prepared in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards and in the 

manner required by the Companies Act in South Africa.  

The Association’s independent external auditors, Deloitte 

& Touche, have audited the annual financial statements 

and their qualified report appears on page 71.

The directors are also responsible for the systems of 

internal control. These are designed to provide 

reasonable but not absolute assurance as to the reliability 

of the financial statements, and to adequately safeguard, 

verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to 

prevent and detect material misstatement and loss.  The 

systems are implemented and monitored by suitably 

trained personnel with an appropriate segregation of 

authority and duties.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to 

indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of 

these controls, procedures and systems has occurred 

during the year under review.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern 

basis.  

The annual financial statements set out on pages 72 to 

94 were approved by the Board of Directors on 

22 September 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr Lyndon Johnstone
Chairperson

Mr Derek Foster
Audit Committee Chairperson
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Qualified Opinion

Deloitte & Touche

In common with similar organisations, it is not feasible for 

the Association to institute accounting controls over cash 

collections from donations, fundraising activities, 

subscriptions, bequests and other income prior to the 

initial entry of the collection in the accounting records. 

Accordingly, it was impractical for us to extend our 

examination beyond the receipts actually recorded.

In our opinion, except for the effect of such adjustments, if 

any, as might have been necessary had we been able to 

satisfy ourselves as to the completeness of cash 

collections, the financial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the Cancer 

Association of South Africa at 31 March 2011, and of its 

financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies 

Act in South Africa.

Per Dr. DA Steyn

Partner

22 September 2011

Deloitte & Touche

Registered Auditors

Address:

Audit - Johannesburg 

Buildings 1 and 2 

Deloitte Place 

The Woodlands 

Woodlands Drive 

Woodmead 

Sandton  

We have audited the annual financial statements of the 

Cancer Association of South Africa, which comprise the 

statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, the 

statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 

changes in accumulated funds and the statement of cash 

flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the 

directors' report, as set out on pages 72 to 94.

The Association's directors are responsible for the 

preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the 

Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal 

control as the directors determine is necessary to enable 

the preparation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 

our audit in accordance with International Standards on 

Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud of error.  In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal controls 

relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 

the financial statements in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity's internal controls.  An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

principles used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the 

overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

qualified audit opinion.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial 

Statements

Auditor's Responsibility

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Nature of Operations

Purpose

Mission

Performance

Financial Position

Contribution of Volunteers

Donations

Going Concern

National Lotteries Grant

The Cancer Association of South Africa (CANSA) is a 

section 21 company, as defined in the Companies Act, 

1973 of South Africa.  In terms of the new Companies Act, 

2008, effective from 1 May 2011, the company will be 

defined only as a non-profit company and will need to 

comply with a set of principles set out in Schedule 1 of the 

new Act. The new Companies Act has no impact on the 

current financial year.

To lead the fight against cancer in South Africa.

To be the preferred non-profit leader that enables research, 

educates the public and provides support to all people 

affected by cancer.

The CANSA operational deficit for the year amounted to 

R0.5 million (2010: deficit of R0.4 million). Research 

recorded a surplus of R2.7 million (2010: surplus of 

R19.0 million).

The accompanying financial statements reflect the 

organisation's financial, operational and research activities 

for the financial year ended 31 March 2011. 

These financial statements cannot reflect the significant 

contributions made to CANSA by thousands of volunteers 

throughout South Africa.  The Association wishes to 

express its thanks and gratitude to all of these volunteers.

Without the support of corporations, trusts and the public, 

who so generously donate and bequeath funds to CANSA 

this organisation could not exist.  Major donors are further 

acknowledged in our annual report.

It is the opinion of the Board of Directors that the 

Association is a going concern. 

An amount of R18.7 million was received from the National 

Lotteries Board during the year for the 2009 grant which 

was approved.  A further R5 million has been approved 

subsequent to year-end.

Market value of Fixed Assets

Subsequent Events

Registered Office

Company Secretary

We draw the attention to the freehold land and buildings 

which are carried at the historical net book value of 

R16.6 million (2010: R15.9 million), which were valued by 

independent registered evaluators at R52.2 million at 

31 March 2011 (2010: R38.0 million). During the year the 

organisation acquired R1.1 million freehold land and 

buildings (2010: R6.7 million) which is included in the 

valuation.

The directors are not aware of any significant events 

subsequent to the year-end up to date of the report, not 

otherwise dealt with in the annual financial statements, 

which could significantly affect the financial position of the 

Association at year-end or the results of its operations for 

the year under view.

26 Concorde Road West, Bedfordview, 2008

R. van Jaarsveld

Directors’ Report
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Committee Members

Board of Directors

Governors Committee

Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

The members of the respective committees in office at the 

date of this report are as follows:

L. Johnstone (Chairperson) – appointed 22/09/2010

P. Colditz (Chairperson) – resigned 22/09/2010

B. Pancha (Vice-Chairperson) – appointed 22/09/2010

S. Janse van Rensburg (CEO)

R. van Jaarsveld (CFO) 

E. Joubert (COO)

Prof. E. McIntosh

Dr. C. Masuku – appointed 22/09/2010

D.A. Foster – appointed 01/01/2011

T.T. Mashaba – appointed 22/09/2010

Prof. G. Ogunbanjo – resigned 22/09/2010

M. Sindane – resigned 22/09/2010

Adv. G. Oliver (President and Chairperson)

Prof. L. Goedhals - Free State/Northern Cape

V. Potgieter - Gauteng 

M. Ngcobo - KwaZulu-Natal 

Dr. H. Jooste - Mpumalanga

G. Matjie - Northwest/ Limpopo

Prof. N.T. Naidoo - Eastern Cape - appointed 22/09/2010

J. Arpin - Eastern Cape - resigned 22/09/2010

Dr. G. Davids - Western Cape - resigned 22/09/2010

P. Colditz (Chairperson BOD - Ex-Officio) - resigned 

22/09/2010

L. Johnstone - appointed 22/09/2010

T.T. Mashaba (Chairperson) - appointed 22/09/2010

L. Johnstone (Chairperson) - resigned 22/09/2010

Dr. T. Nell - appointed 22/09/2010

J. Arpin - resigned 22/09/2010

S. Janse van Rensburg (CEO - Ex-Officio)

E. Joubert (COO - Ex-Officio) 

R. Wall (Head Human Resources - Ex-Officio) - resigned 

31/03/2011

B. Akersten (Transformation/Human Resources Head - 

Ex-Officio) - appointed 01/04/2011 

D.A. Foster (Chairperson) - appointed 01/01/2011

M. Sindane (Chairperson) - resigned 22/09/2010

B. Pancha 

G. Hughes 

Dr. H. Jooste - resigned 22/09/2010

S. Janse van Rensburg (CEO -Ex-Officio)

R. van Jaarsveld (CFO - Ex-Officio)

Investment Committee

Research Committee 

Chairpersons Committee

Ethics Committee (established October 

2010)

B. Pancha (Chairperson)

V. Potgieter 

W. Stals - resigned 22/09/2010

S. Janse van Rensburg (CEO)

R. van Jaarsveld (CFO)

Dr. C. Masuku (Chairperson) - appointed 22/09/2010
Prof. G.A. Ogunbanjo (Chairperson) - resigned 22/09/2010

S. Janse van Rensburg (CEO)

Dr. C. Albrecht (Head: Research)

Prof. L. Maree 

Prof. V. Sewram 

Dr. F. Du Rand

Prof. L Dreosti - appointed 22/09/2010

N. Matsau - appointed 22/09/2010

Prof. P. Arbuthnot - appointed 22/09/2010

Prof. P. Ruff - resigned 22/09/2010

Dr. M.A. Dhansay - resigned 22/09/2010

Prof. L. Goedhals - resigned 22/09/2010

L. Johnstone (Chairperson) - appointed 22/09/2010

P. Colditz (Chairperson) - resigned 22/09/2010

D. Metelerkamp - Eastern Cape

M. De Freitas - Gauteng

N. Phalatse - Northwest

C. Magagula - KwaZulu-Natal 

E. Stronkhorst - Mpumalanga

D. Fritz (neè Kiewiets) - Western Cape 

S. Janse van Rensburg (CEO – Ex-Officio)

W.I.J. Fourie - Free State/Northern Cape - appointed 

22/09/2010

Dr. C. Harris - Limpopo - appointed 22/09/2010

H. Viljoen - Free State/Northern Cape - resigned 

22/09/2010

R. Ubisi - Mpumalanga - resigned 22/09/2010

Prof. E. McIntosh (Chairperson) - appointed 01/10/2010

S. Janse van Rensburg (CEO – Ex-Officio) - appointed 

01/10/2010

Prof. A. Dhai - appointed 01/10/2010

Prof. M. Swanepoel - appointed 01/03/2011

M. Pryde - appointed 01/10/2010

Prof. M. Herbst - appointed 01/10/2010

M. Seguin - appointed 01/10/2010

 (continued)
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The King III Report on Corporate Governance, which 

became effective from 1 March 2010, provides guidance to 

entities on various governance related aspects.

The  Association has decided to apply the following 

principles in order to implement and practice good 

governance:

?Ethical leadership and corporate citizenship;

?The Board of Directors meet at least four times per year 

and ensures that the organisation survives and thrives;

?Sub-committees of the Board meet at least three times 

per year and each has a charter setting out its 

responsibilities;

?The Board ensures that the strategy is aligned with the 

purpose of the organisation, the value drivers of its 

operations business and the legitimate interest and 

expectations of its stakeholders;

?Risk Committees have been established to control and 

monitor risk in the Organisation by means of risk 

assessment;

?The Association has an effective and independent Audit 

Committee which is chaired by an independent non-

executive director;

?The Association complies with applicable laws, rules, 

codes and standards;

?The Association established an independent internal 

audit function which systematically analyses and 

evaluates business processes and associated controls;

?The Association is transparent and accountable and 

ensures integrated reporting and disclosure; and

?The Association governs stakeholders’ relationships.

Corporate Governance Report 
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Assets

Non-current assets

Current assets

Total assets

Accumulated Funds and Liabilities

Accumulated funds and reserves

Other funds

Current liabilities

Total accumulated funds and liabilities

135,980 137,629

Property and equipment 5 21,141 20,851

Other financial assets 6 114,839 116,778

17,155 14,490

Inventories 7 1,753 1,160

Receivables 8 8,376 6,237

Cash and bank balances 23 7,026 7,093

153,135 152,119

122,507 120,295

Operational funds and reserves 7,818 8,288

Research funds and reserves 11 114,689 112,007

20,853 21,197

National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund 12 10,078 12,461

Earmarked funds 12 10,775 8,736

9,775 10,627

Provisions 9 3,508 1,991

Trade and other payables 10 6,267 8,449

Bank overdraft 23 - 187

153,135 152,119

2011 2010

Notes R'000 R'000

as at 31 March 2011
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Income from fund development 13 11,821 16,934

Income from national and provincial projects 14 31,319 26,026

Income from donations and general 15 12,646 11,907

Income from bequests 10,875 9,968

Investment revenue 16 226 458

Other gains and losses 17 21,077 15,989

Administration service delivery expenses (67,292) (73,409)

Expenditure relating to funds utilised (21,045) (7,953)

Finance costs 18 (97) (295)

19 (470) (375)Total comprehensive deficit for the year 
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2011 2010

Notes R'000 R'000

8,663 92,989 101,652

Total comprehensive (deficit) /

surplus for the year (375) 19,018 18,643

8,288 112,007 120,295

Total comprehensive (deficit) /

surplus for the year (470) 2,682 2,212

7,818 114,689 122,507

R'000 R'000 R'000

Balance at 1 April 2009

Balance at 31 March 2010 

Balance at 31 March 2011

Accumulated
Operational Funds

and Reserves

 Accumulated 
Research Funds 

and Reserves

 Total
Accumulated 

Funds and 
Reserves

for the Year Ended 31 March 2011

for the Year Ended 31 March 2011
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Changes in 
Accumulated Funds



Cash Flows Utilised in

Operating Activities 

Cash Flows Generated from

Investing Activities 

Cash Flows Utilised in 

Financing Activities 

(4,832) (8,568)

Cash receipts from operating activities 66,196 82,968

Cash paid in operating activities (71,015) (91,536)

Cash utilised in operations 21 (4,819) (8,568)

Finance costs paid (13) -

9,307 10,048

Acquisition of property and equipment (1,801) (7,682)

Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 95 8,235

Net investment income 226 458

Decrease in other financial assets 10,787 9,037

(4,355) (684)

Repayment of research loan (3,287) (462)

Decrease in research accounts payable (1,068) (222)

Net increase in cash and bank balances 120 796

Cash and bank balances at beginning of the year 6,906 6,110

Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 23 7,026 6,906

Statement of Cash Flows
for the Year Ended 31 March 2011
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IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - 
Amendments resulting from May 2010 Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs (Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2011)
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - 
Amendments to revise the way other comprehensive 
income is presented (Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2012)
IAS 12 Income Taxes - Limited scope amendment 
(recovery of underlying assets) (Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012)
IAS 19 Employee Benefits - Amended Standard 
resulting from the Post-Employment Benefits and 
Termination Benefits projects (Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures - Revised definition of 
related parties (Effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2011)
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
- Reissued as IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as 
amended in 2011) (Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
IAS 28 Investments in Associates - Reissued as IAS 28 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as 
amended in 2011) (Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - Amendments 
resulting from May 2010 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2011)

The Association is still evaluating the impact of the above 

standards and interpretations but does not believe that 

they will have a significant impact on the financial 

statements.

3.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the Companies Act, No 61 of 1973 as 

amended.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the 

historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain 

non-current assets and financial instruments.  

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the 

consideration given in exchange for assets.  

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.3 Accumulated funds

The Association is incorporated not for gain. 

Consequently, in terms of the Memorandum of 

Association the accumulated funds are non-

distributable. These funds may only be used to promote 

the objects of the Association.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

1. General Information

2. Adoption of new and revised 

International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs)

The entity is an Association not for gain, incorporated in 

South Africa. The addresses of its registered office and 

principal place of business are disclosed within the 

directors' report. The principal activities of the Association 

are also described therein.

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective in the 

current period
In the current year, the company has adopted all the new 

and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that 

are relevant and effective for the accounting period 

beginning 1 April 2010.

2.2 Standards and interpretations in issue not yet 

adopted
As at the date of these financial statements, the 

following relevant standards and interpretations were in 

issue but not yet effective:
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards - Amendments resulting from May 
2010 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (Effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards - Replacement of 'fixed dates' for 
certain exceptions with 'the date of transition to IFRSs' 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2011)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards - Additional exemption for entities 
ceasing to suffer from severe hyperinflation (Effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011)
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - 
Amendments resulting from May 2010 Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs (Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2011) 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - 
Amendments enhancing disclosures about transfers of 
financial assets (Effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 July 2011)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Classification and 
measurement (Effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2013)
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (Effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2013)
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) 
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The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 

an item of property and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

3.6 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined 

on the first-in first-out method, and net realisable value. 

Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, 

direct labour cost and those overheads that have been 

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 

location and condition. Net realisable value represents 

the estimated selling price less all estimated cost of 

completion and cost to be incurred in marketing, selling 

and distribution.

3.7 Earmarked Funds 

Earmarked funds are administered in terms of the 

specific conditions applicable to the particular fund. 

3.8 Retirement Benefits

The company contributes to a defined contribution 

plan. Contributions paid are recognised as an expense 

in the period that they occur. 

3.9 Impairment of Tangible Assets

At the end of each reporting date, the Association 

reviews the carrying value of its tangible assets to 

determine whether there is any indication that those 

assets may be impaired.  If any such indication exists, 

the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if 

any). Where it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable amount for an individual asset, the 

recoverable amount is determined for the cash 

generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less 

costs to sell and value in use.  In assessing value in use, 

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the asset for which the 

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be 

less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of 

asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or 

loss. 
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3.4 Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable.  All revenue is 

stated net of Value Added Tax. 

Revenue from fundraising, including bequests 

received, is recognised when received.  Revenue from 

the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of 

goods to customers.  Revenue from the rendering of 

the services is recognised upon the delivery of a service 

to the customers.  Royalty revenue is recognised on an 

accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the 

relevant agreement (provided that it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 

amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest revenue is recognised when it is probable that 

the economic benefits will flow to the Association and 

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.  

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, be 

reference to the principal outstanding and at the 

effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 

through the expected life of the financial asset to that 

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend revenue from investments is recognised 

when the shareholder's right to receive payment has 

been established. 

3.5 Property and Equipment

Owner occupied property is stated at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment losses.  Leasehold property is amortised 

over the life of the lease.  Furniture, motor vehicles and 

equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over 

their estimated useful lives to their estimated residual 

values.  Freehold land is not depreciated.  

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost on 

items of property and equipment over their estimated 

useful lives to their estimated residual value.  Estimated 

residual values, useful lives and depreciation method 

are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any 

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective 

basis.

The rates of depreciation are as follows:

Freehold buildings 2% per annum

Leasehold buildings 2% per annum 

Furniture and equipment 20% per annum

Motor vehicles 10% - 15% per annum

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements - 31 March 2011 continued
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except where another more systematic basis is more 

representative of the time pattern in which economic 

benefits from the leased asset are consumed.  

Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are 

recognised as an expense in the period in which they 

are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter 

into operating leases, such incentives are recognised 

as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is 

recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a 

straight-line basis, except where another systematic 

basis is more representative of the time pattern in 

which economic benefits from the leased asset are 

consumed.

3.13 Financial Instruments

The Association's financial instruments consist mainly 

of investments, bank balances and cash, receivables 

and trade payables. 

Financial instruments mentioned above, are stated at 

their fair values. 

The Association does not use derivative financial 

instruments nor does the Association speculate in the 

trading of derivative instruments.

Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into the following specified 

categories: financial assets 'at fair value through profit or 

loss' (FVTPL) and 'loans and receivables'. The classification 

depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets 

and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective Interest Method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating 

the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating 

interest income over the relevant period. The effective 

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 

future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or 

received that form an integral part of the effective interest 

rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 

through the expected life of the financial asset, or where 

appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on 

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt 

instruments other than those financial assets designated 

as at FVTPL.

Financial Assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the 

financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as 

at FVTPL.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 

carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 

estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 

increased carrying amount does not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined had 

no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 

prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Association has a 

present obligation as a result of a past event and it is 

probable that this will result in an outflow of economic 

benefits that can be reliably estimated. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best 

estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 

taking into account the risks and uncertainties 

surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is 

measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present 

value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to 

settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is 

virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and 

the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised 

when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for 

the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of 

services rendered by employees up to the reporting 

date. 

3.11 National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund

Lotto grants are accounted for according to IAS 20 

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 

Government Assistance. Lotto grants are recognised 

when there is reasonable assurance that the 

Association will comply with the conditions applicable 

to the grant and that the grants will be received.  Lotto 

grants that relate to expenses are recognised as income 

on a systematic and reasonable basis, over the period 

necessary to match them with the related costs.

3.12 Leases

Leases are classified as financial leases whenever the 

terms of the lease transfer substantially all risk and 

rewards of the ownership to the lessee. All other leases 

are classified as operational leases. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an 

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at face value 

which approximates fair value. Cash and cash equivalents 

comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, bank 

overdrafts and other short-term highly liquid investments 

that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and 

are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.

Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed 

for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. 

Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there 

is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events 

that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial 

asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment 

have been affected.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as 

receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired 

individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a 

collective basis.  Objective evidence of impairment for a 

portfolio of receivables could include the Association's 

past experience of collecting payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount 

of the impairment is the difference between the asset's 

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 

cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original 

effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the 

impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the 

exception of receivables, where the carrying amount is 

reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a 

receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off 

against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of 

amounts previously written off are credited against the 

allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the 

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment 

loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 

to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, 

the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 

through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount 

of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed 

does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been 

had the impairment not been recognised.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

?it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling 

in the near future; or

?it is part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments 

that the Association manages together and has a recent 

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

?it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a 

hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading 

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

?such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a 

measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 

otherwise arise; or

?the financial asset forms part of a group of financial 

assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed 

and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 

accordance with the Association's document risk 

management or investment strategy, and information 

about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; 

or

?it forms part of a contract containing one or more 

embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial 

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits 

the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be 

designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any 

resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The 

net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates 

any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is 

included in the 'other gains and losses' line item in the 

statement of comprehensive income. Fair value is 

determined in the manner described in note 13.

Loans and Receivables
Receivables and loans that have fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market are 

classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables 

are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method, less any impairment. Interest income is 

recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except 

for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest 

would be immaterial.

Due to the short-term nature of the Association's 

receivables, amortised cost is deemed to equal fair value. 

Investments
Investments are classified as financial assets at FVTPL. 

They are initially measured at fair value. Increases or 

decreases in the carrying amount of investments are 

recognised in profit or loss.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss when the 

Association's right to receive the dividends is established.
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recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if 

the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 

revision and future periods if the revision affects both the 

current and future periods.

4.1 Cr i t ica l  Judgements  in  Apply ing the 

Association's Accounting Policies 
In the process of applying the Association's accounting 

policies, management has made no judgements that 

have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in 

the financial statements. The period over which each 

grant is recognised is based on each grant specification.

4.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other 

key sources of estimation at the reporting date, that had 

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed 

below:

4.2.1 Going Concern
It is the opinion of the Board of Directors that the 

Association is a going concern. The following five major 

considerations were taken into account in assessing 

whether the Association will remain a going concern for 

the foreseeable future: 

?The focus will remain on increasing service delivery 

while maintaining cost and sustainable processes. 

?The approved 2009 grant from the National Lotteries 

Distribution Trust Fund of R18.6 million was received 

during August 2010. A further R5 million has been 

approved subsequent to year-end.

?Valuation of the freehold land and buildings was 

performed indicating a market value of R52.2 million 

(2010: R38.0 million). 

?The current level of investments, being

R114.8 million, is deemed more than sufficient to 

cover operating and research related expenditure in 

the near future.

?There has been an increase in project revenues from 

events such as Shavathon and Relay For Life that is 

anticipated to continue increasing year on year.

4.2.2 Useful Lives of Property and Equipment
?As described in 3.5 above, the Association reviews 

the estimated useful lives of property and equipment 

at the end of each annual reporting period.  During the 

financial year, the directors determined that the useful 

lives of fixed assets are appropriate as disclosed in 

the relevant note.

?

?

?
?

?

?

?

Derecognition of Financial Assets
The Association derecognises a financial asset only when 

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially 

all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 

another entity. If the Association neither transfers nor 

retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

and continues to control the transferred asset, the 

Association recognises its retained interest in the asset 

and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If 

the Association retains substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 

Association continues to recognise the financial asset and 

also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds 

received.

Financial Liabilities
The Association does not have any financial liabilities other 

than borrowings and trade payables which are classified as 

'other financial liabilities'.

Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially 

measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other 

financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method, with 

interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating 

the amortised cost of a financial liability and allocating 

interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 

future cash payments through the expected life of the 

financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The Association derecognises financial liabilities when, 

and only when, the Association's obligations are 

discharged, cancelled or expire.

In the application of the Association's accounting policies, 

which are described in note 3, the directors are required to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 

readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 

associated assumptions are based on historical 

experience and other factors that are considered relevant.  

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and 

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
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Balance at 1 April 2010 19,278 2,912 7,953 3,506 33,649

Additions 1,069 - 793 - 1,862

Disposals - - (154) (73) (227)

Balance at 31 March 2011 20,347 2,912 8,592 3,433 35,284

Balance at 1 April 2010 3,325 1,632 6,301 1,540 12,798

Depreciation expense 446 77 653 325 1,501

Disposals - - (89) (67) (156)

Balance at 31 March 2011 3,771 1,709 6,865 1,798 14,143

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Cost

Accumulated depreciation 

5. Property and Equipment

Cost 35,284 33,649

Accumulated depreciation (14,143) (12,798)

21,141 20,851

Freehold land and buildings 16,576 15,953

Leasehold land and buildings 1,203 1,280

Furniture and equipment 1,727 1,652

Motor vehicles 1,635 1,966

21,141 20,851

Leasehold
land and 
buildings

Furniture
and

equipment
Motor 

vehicles

Freehold
land and
buildings Total

independent valuators at a market value of R52.2 million 

(31 March 2010: R38.0 million).  During the year the 

organisation acquired R1.1 million (2010: R6.7 million) 

freehold land and buildings which is included in the 

valuation number above.

Registers of Property and Investments 

A register of land and buildings and of listed, unlisted and 

other investments is available for inspection by members 

at the Association's registered office.

Market value of fixed assets - freehold land and buildings at 

carrying value (cost less accumulated depreciation) of 

R16.6 million (2010: R15.9 million) was valued by 

83

2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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6. Other Financial Assets

6.1 Investments

6.2 Research fund assets 

6.3 Reconciliation to statement of financial position: 

Financial assets carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Listed investments - at market value - -

Unlisted investments - at directors' valuation (i) 1,031 7,794

1,031 7,794

Listed investments – at market value 89,513 89,212

Unlisted investments – at directors’ valuation (i) 24,295 19,772

113,808 108,984

Loan to CANSA operations (ii) 1,420 4,426

115,228 113,410

Investments relating to earmarked funds 1,031 7,794

Research fund assets (excluding internal loan) 113,808 108,984

114,839 116,778

All investments above are classified as being non-current.

(i) The directors' valuation of unlisted investments approximates the fair value of the investments.  

(ii) Loans from research funds will be repaid depending on the operational requirements and cash flows of the

Association. The loans bear interest at 6% for 2010/2011.  In reality, this is an internal loan and

therefore does not appear separately disclosed on the statement of financial position.  It is disclosed

separately here in order to distinguish the funds attributable to research fund assets which are currently

being utilised elsewhere in the organisation.

84

2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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7. Inventories

8. Receivables 

Ageing of past due but not impaired

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts

9. Provisions

Merchandise 1,753 1,160

Amounts receivable from patients 2,644 2,500

Allowance for doubtful debts (770) (246)

Sundry receivables 4,206 1,984

Seal of Recognition royalties receivable 341 619

VAT receivable 1,955 1,380

8,376 6,237

The directors consider that the carrying amount of receivables approximates their fair value.

Included in the Association’s receivables are amounts of R1.6 million (2010: R1.1 million) which are past due at

the reporting date which the Association has not provided for. Due to past experience as well as commitment

from certain patients, the amounts are expected to be recoverable at the reporting date.

60-90 days 780 148 

90-120 days 852 954

Total 1,632 1,102

Balance at the beginning of the year 246 148 

Impairment losses recognised on receivables 524 98

Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible - -

Balance at the end of the year 770 246

Employee benefits (i) 3,508 1,991 

3,508 1,991

(i) The provision for employee benefits represents annual leave entitlements accrued. It further includes the
thprovision for 13  cheque payments due to employees in December each year. These are all determined to

be current.
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2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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10. Trade and Other Payables 

11. Research Funds and Reserves
11.1 Research fund portfolios 

11.2 Movement in research funds 

Trade payables 1,859 656

Sundry payables 4,408 7,793

6,267 8,449

Martin Zadek 25,327 24,556

C.V. Lamont 62,826 60,915

P & R Ainslie 40 40

E/L H E Griffin 900 900

Bequests earmarked for research 26,141 27,060

Bequest funds 25,931 25,782

Accounts payable (included in sundry payables – note 10) 210 1,278

115,234 113,471

Balance at beginning of the year 112,007 92,989

Net movement on research funds (refer note 20) 2,682 19,018

Accumulated funds and reserves 114,689 112,007

Accounts payable (included in sundry payables – note 10) 210 1,278

Earmark funds received (included in earmarked funds – note 12) 335 186

Balance at end of the year 115,234 113,471

Accounts payable comprises of R0.2 million (2010: R1.3 million)

capital for CARISA. 

2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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12. Earmarked Funds 

12.1 Allocation of earmarked funds

12.2 National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund

12.3 Movement in other earmarked funds

13. Income from Fund Development

National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund 10,078 12,461

Health Promotion 3,991 3,553

Patient Care 3,691 1,440

Assets 856 1,058

Research 717 382

Other 1,520 2,303

20,853 21,197

Balance at beginning of the year 12,461 20,414

Earmarked funds received 18,662 -

Earmarked funds utilised (21,045) (7,953)

Balance at end of the year 10,078 12,461

Balance at beginning of the year 8,736 8,392

Earmarked funds received 3,214 1,811

Earmarked funds utilised (1,175) (1,467)

Balance at end of the year 10,775 8,736

Income relating to fund development comprises:

Mail appeal and teledonations 5,447 6,857

Corporate and trusts 2,461 4,039

Government grants 2,738 3,338

Utilisation of earmarked funds 1,175 2,700

11,821 16,934

2011 2010

R'000 R'000



Notes to the Annual Financial Statements - 31 March 2011 continued

88

14. Income from National and Provincial

Projects

15. Income from Donations and General

16. Investment Revenue

17. Other Gains and Losses

Income relating to national and provincial projects comprise:

Relay For Life, Cuppa For CANSA, Sanlam Cancer Challenge, 

Shavathon, Jail n Bail, Movember and others 25,965 21,539

Special provincial events 3,590 2,442

Other projects and events 1,764 2,045

31,319 26,026

Donations and general income 6,550 6,845

Hospitium, Cytology, Stoma and others 6,096 5,062

12,646 11,907

Interest revenue:

Bank deposits 225 397

Dividends received 1 61

226 458

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 31 7,029

National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund grant utilised 21,045 7,953

Net gain arising on financial assets as at FVTPL 1 1,007

21,077 15,989

2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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18. Finance Costs

19. Deficit for the Year

Interest paid on:

Research loan 84 295

Bank overdrafts 13 -

97 295

The total comprehensive deficit for the year is stated 

after the following:

Staff costs 47,087 40,594

Directors/senior management remuneration - executive 1,964 1,988

Directors’ remuneration – non-executive 46 38

Auditors – fees 630 487

Current year 545 540

Prior year – under/(over) provision 85 (53)

Operating lease expenses 2,146 1,867

Depreciation 1,501 1,386

2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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20. Research Statement of Comprehensive Income
Income from bequests received 3,702 -

Investment revenue

Dividends 1,180 999

Interest received from bank deposits 832 1,041

Interest received from CANSA operations 84 295

Other gains and losses

Net gain arising on financial assets as at FVTPL 6,245 24,272

Trust and other income 232 648

Expenditure relating to research grants received (4,937) (3,635)

Staff costs (2,266) (1,597)

Consultants (64) (138)

Investment advisor's fees (573) (563)

Travel and accommodation (368) (334)

Administration expenses (791) (778)

Other expenses (594) (1,192)

Net movement on research funds (Note 11) 2,682 19,018

2011 2010

R'000 R'000



21. Reconciliation of Deficit for the Year to 

Cash Utilised in Operations

22. Financial Instruments

22.1 Fair value of financial instruments

  
Deficit for the year (470) (375)

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 97 295

Investment revenue recognised in profit or loss (226) (458)

Gain on disposal of property and equipment (31) (7,029)

Depreciation of property and equipment 1,428 1,386

Net gain arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL (1) (1,007)

Net effect of cash flow from research activities (4,542) (6,590)

Impairment loss recognised on receivables 524 98

(3,221) (13,680)

Movements in working capital:

Increase in inventory (593) (9)

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (2,664) 8,534

Increase in trade and other payables 3,842 4,872

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 200 (332)

Decrease in National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund (2,383) (7,953)

 Cash utilised in operations (4,819) (8,568)

22.1.1 Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

All financial instruments are carried at fair value or amounts that approximate fair value. The carrying amounts

for investments, cash and cash equivalents as well as receivables and payables approximate fair value due to

the short term nature of the instruments. These are reflected below. 

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined as follows.

• The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on

an active liquid market are determined with reference to quoted market prices.

• The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are determined in

accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices

from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments.

2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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22.1.2 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition to fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

• Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the

asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial assets designated at FVTPL - 89,513 25,326 114,839

Total - 89,513 25,326 114,839

There were no transfers between the different levels in the period.

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

22.2.1 Categories of Financial Instruments

Cash and bank balances 7,026 7,093

Designated as at FVTPL 114,839 116,778

Loans and receivables 6,421 4,857

Amortised cost (6,267) (8,449)

Bank overdraft - (187)

122,019 120,092

22.2.2 Currency Profile of Financial Instruments

(in reporting currency)

  South African Rand 119,317 120,092

  Pound Sterling 2,702 -

122,019 120,092

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

  

2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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22.3.1 Foreign Currency Risk Management

Foreign currency risk is isolated to investments taken out in foreign currency. The fair value of these 

investments are impacted by changes in the ruling exchange rate. The risk is managed by the Investment 

Committee and related fund managers.

22.3.2 Interest Rate Risk Management

The Association finances its operations through its accumulated funds and cash accumulated in the bank.

Due to there being no external borrowings, exposure to interest rate risk is minimal. 

22.3.3 Liquidity Risk Management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has built an

appropriate liquidity management framework for the Association’s short term funding and liquidity

management requirements. The Association manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,

banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash

flows. The Association also manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that

adequate unutilised borrowing facilities are maintained. It is the Association’s policy to deposit short term

cash investments with major financial institutions. 

Liquidity profile

22.3 Financial Risk Management

Designated as at FVTPL - - - 114,839 114,839

Loans and receivables 6,421 - - - 6,421

At amortised cost (6,267) - - - (6,267)

Designated as at FVTPL - - - 116,778 116,778

Loans and receivables 4,857 - - - 4,857

At amortised cost (8,449) - - - (8,449)

At 31 March 2011: 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

At 31 March 2010: 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total

22.3.4 Market Risk Management

Due to the nature of the Association and the services they provide, investment portfolios are managed by

portfolio managers.

In addition, there are certain portfolios of investments which include capital guarantees.  The majority of

the Association’s investments are equity based. These are subject to price fluctuations on the

Johannesburg Stock Exchange and are managed by PSG, Sanlam Private Investments ,Investec and

Huysamer Capital Investments.

22.3.5 Credit Risk Management

Potential concentrations of credit risk consist principally of debtors and balances at banks. Debtors consist

mainly of medical accounts and the Lotto.  Due to the nature of the debtors, credit evaluations are not

performed.  However, revenue and the related debtor are only recognised when no significant uncertainty

as to its collectability exists. Appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts is made and at the

year-end. Management did not consider there to be any material credit risk exposure that was not already

covered by a doubtful debt provision. Refer to note 8 for details.
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23. Cash And Bank Balances

24. Retirement Fund Contributions 

25. Operating Leases 

26. Contingent Liabilities 

27. Taxation 

28. Related Party Transactions

Cash and bank balances 7,026 7,093

Bank overdraft - (187)

7,026 6,906

The Cancer Association pension fund is a defined contribution

plan. The funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act of 

1956. All employees contribute to a fund. 

Number of pension fund members 258 269

Pension fund contribution for the year 5,180 4,987

Commitments at year-end in respect of operating leases

are detailed below:

Payable within one year 781 1,244

Payable within 2-5 years 2,247 4,857

3,028 6,101

There are no contingent liabilities at year-end (2010: none).

The Association is exempt from tax in terms of section 10(1)cN of the Income Tax Act. 

The remuneration of directors and key executives is as set out in note 19 having regard to the performance

of individuals and market trends. These consist of salaries and other short-term employee benefits as per 

note 3.8. During the year, an amount of R249,306 (2010: R202,769) was received from The Giving 

Organisations Trust.

2011 2010

R'000 R'000
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